
From: Carl Bird on behalf of HS2Enquiries
To: hs2@jimconboy.com
Subject: RE: FOI18-2188/FOI-19-3090-R (FS50849921 and FS50849433)
Date: 25 June 2019 15:52:22
Attachments: FOI-19-3090-R-Annex-A.pdf

FOI-19-3090-R-Response.pdf

Dear Dr Conboy
 
ICO reference: FS50849921 and FS50849433
Our reference: FOI-19-3090-R
 
Please find attached a response to your request for review of response reference FOI-
18-2188.  I apologise for the delay.
 
I understand that you have been in contact with the Information Commissioners Office
(ICO) regarding this matter.
 
While I note that you have written to the ICO stating that you are awaiting both a
response to a new request and an Internal Review, the attached correspondence is our
response both to your email of 03 February 2019 and to your email of 08 February
2019. Your email of 03 February 2019 was treated as a request for review, rather than
a new request, as it expressed dissatisfaction with the original response and it only
requested a subset of the information that had already been refused in FOI-18-2188. 
We have responded to the ICO to explain this.
 
I apologise again for the late delivery of the review. 
 
If you need anything further please let me know.
 
Carl
 
Carl Bird | Briefings, Correspondence and FOI Manager | HS2 Ltd      

Tel: 08081 434 434 (Freephone number)| HS2Enquiries@hs2.org.uk| Facebook |
Twitter | LinkedIn

High Speed Two (HS2) Limited , Two Snow Hill, Snow Hill Queensway, Birmingham,
B4 6GA  | www.gov.uk/hs2
 
 

From: HS2 Jim [mailto:hs2@jimconboy.com] 
Sent: 08 February 2019 12:31
To: HS2Enquiries <HS2Enquiries@hs2.org.uk>
Subject: Complaint [ RE: FOI18-2188 - Response
 
Dear HS2 Ltd,
 
Please find attached a document stating our reasons for complaining about your refusal to
release any information, in response to our FOI 18-2188.
 
Regards,
Dr James Conboy
(for the Chiltern Society HS2 group)

mailto:Carl.Bird@hs2.org.uk
mailto:HS2Enquiries@hs2.org.uk
mailto:hs2@jimconboy.com
mailto:HS2Enquiries@hs2.org.uk
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http://www.twitter.com/hs2ltd
http://www.linkedin.com/company/high-speed-two-hs2-ltd
http://www.gov.uk/hs2
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Annex A – Public Interest Test 
 
 


Regulation 12(4)(d) – Material in the course of completion, unfinished 


documents and incomplete data 


 
Factors supporting disclosure 
 


 Disclosure of information would help to ensure transparency and visibility 


of public bodies  


 


 There is a general public interest in facilitating public understanding of an 


important public project and matters of public concern. 
 


Factors supporting non-disclosure 


 


 Producing reports for the options being considered is part of the process 


informing an eventual decision and announcement on these aspects of 


the project. There is a public interest in ensuring that public officials have 


a safe space to work candidly and freely without being concerned that 


information could be released that could be potentially misleading.  


 It is in the public interest that public authorities and stakeholders are able 


to express opinions, play devil’s advocate and provide free and frank 


advice during discussions. If such free and frank views were disclosed, 


this would inhibit that process to the public detriment if officials felt 


pressurised not to express such views in future. 


 HS2 Ltd is subject to debate in the national press and attracts a great deal 


of interest and debate from action groups, major organisations and 


members of the public. While we are aware that we can contextualise 


information to highlight any potential inaccuracies we are not confident 


that this will be sufficient to correct any misleading impressions or 


confusion that could be created publically if this information were 


released and used in the national debate surrounding HS2, especially 


without policy-makers being able to make a clear rebuttal based on 


further analysis of the options being considered. This could damage 


decision-making in what is a difficult and sensitive policy area. 


 Decision-makers should be judged on the final decision and their reasons 


for it, not on what might have been considered or recommended by others 


in draft or preliminary documents. 


 There is a public interest in favour of ensuring that a public authority does 


not have to expend resources on justifying information in early draft or 


preliminary documents. 







Annex A – Public Interest Test 
 
 


Balance Test 


 


The issues of transparency and awareness are noted. However, on balance it is 


considered that the public interest in providing the information is outweighed 


by the potential impact release would have on the decision making processes. It 


is noted that release into the public domain at this time is likely to lead to 


misinformed public debate.  This, in turn, would lead to the diversion of public 


resources in order to address issues that are still under consideration. 


 


There is strong public interest in ensuring that public authorities are given space 


to develop policies and make informed decisions, without concern that the 


public debate could be skewed by the early release of unfinished analyses.  


Consequently we believe the reasons against disclosure outweigh the public 


interest in releasing the information. 
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Regulation 12(4)(e)  - Internal Communications 


 
Factors supporting disclosure 
 


 The public needs to understand how and why decisions have been taken 


and the factors taken into account by decision makers. 


 


 Disclosure would help facilitate public understanding of an important 


public project and matters of public concern. 


 


Factors supporting non-disclosure 


 


 Public authorities need the space to “think in private” and to safeguard the 


space needed for internal deliberation and the decision making process.  


 HS2 Ltd is mindful of the need for officers to have a safe space to 


exchange free and frank views in future which allows them to develop 


ideas, debate live issues and reach decisions away from external 


interference and distraction. 


 Disclosure of the information would have a negative impact on the 


provision of advice and introduces the risk of decisions being made 


without the knowledge of all known facts  


 


Balance Test 


 


It is acknowledged that the release of this information would increase 


transparency and has the potential to increase understanding of this major 


public project. However disclosure would prejudice the free and frank exchange 


of views and the ability to reach fully informed decisions. It is in the public 


interest to preserve a ‘safe space’ in which public authorities can debate issues 


away from public scrutiny.  


 


Release of this information would have a ‘chilling effect’ on the free and frank 


exchange of views in the future. It is important that officials can provide 


information and views without fear that the public debate could be unduly 


influenced by the premature release of preliminary options. 


 


For these reasons the public interest test favours withholding the requested 


information. 








 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


Dr James Conboy 


hs2@jimconboy.com  


 


 


25 June 2019 


 


Dear Dr Conboy, 


FOI-19-3090-R – internal review response 


I am writing in response to your concerns about HS2 Ltd’s handling of your request for 


information (our reference: FOI18-2188) received on 11 November 2018 and which was 


responded to on 10 December 2018. 


Your information request was handled by F Woollard - Briefings, Correspondence and FOI 


Adviser. I was appointed to carry out an independent review as a member of the HS2 Ltd 


Senior Leadership team not involved in the original decision. 


In your request you asked for the following information: 


“We understand that you have commissioned a report on the safety case for the 


Chilterns Tunnel, a long standing concern of this society. We request a copy of the 


report, and any related correspondence between HS2 Ltd and its authors, under the 


Freedom of Information Act.” 


Original decision 


HS2 Ltd wrote to you on 10 December 2018 to confirm that we hold the information 


requested but that it was being withheld under the Environmental Information Regulations 


(EIR) (the ‘Regulations’): 


 12(5)(a) – public safety  


 12(5)(e) – commercial sensitivity. 


 


Internal review request 


On 03 February 2019 you contacted HS2 Ltd to request an internal review as you were not 


satisfied with the original response to the above request.  You asked for “a copy of those 


portions of the report” relating “to the procedures for the evacuation of a stationary train 


within the Chiltern Tunnels, and for providing a ‘rescue’ train on the unaffected line.”  You 


subsequently submitted a separate complaint noting your disagreement with the Refusal 


Notice. 
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Internal review 


I have reviewed the original request and the following exceptions of the Regulations are 


applicable in this case:  


 EIR Regulation 12(4)(e): Request involves disclosure of internal communications 


 EIR Regulation: Regulation 12(4)(d) Relates to material which is still in the course 


of completion; unfinished documents; and incomplete data.  


 


Regulation 12(4)(e)  Internal Communications 


 


Regulation 12(4)(e) excepts information from disclosure where “the request involves the 


disclosure of internal communications”.  The request is for a report which was commissioned 


by the Area Central team and intended for internal considerations only.  The report is an 


independent opinion piece that was never intended for circulation beyond HS2 Ltd. Therefore 


the documents were intended for internal communication only and are ‘internal 


communications’ for the purposes of the EIR.  


 


Regulation 12(4)(d) – Material in the course of completion, unfinished documents and 


incomplete data 


 


Regulation 12(4)(d) of the EIRs provides that a public authority may refuse to disclose 


information “to the extent that the request relates to material which is still in the course of 


completion, to unfurnished documents or to incomplete data”. In effect, the exception covers 


three classes of information: information which relates to material which is still in the course of 


completion; unfinished documents; and incomplete data. If the information falls into any one 


of these categories, then the exception is potentially engaged (subject to a consideration of 


where the public interest lies). In this case the subject matter that the information relates to is 


material which is still in the course of completion and therefore this exception is engaged. 


 


Public Interest Test 


 


All exceptions under EIR are subject to a Public Interest Test (PIT) which means that we need 


to consider whether in all circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 


exception outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. The public interest is 


not what interests the public, or a particular individual, but what will be the greater good, if 


released, to the community as a whole. 


 


For a public interest test, issues that favour release need to be measured against issues that 


favour non-disclosure. As noted by the Information Commissioner, if more than one EIR 


exception applies to the information, it is possible to aggregate the public interest factors 


relevant to each exception when considering the public interest test.  


 







 


 


We have weighed up the benefits to the public of releasing the information against the factors 


for not releasing it. We consider that the factors for not releasing the information outweigh 


those for disclosure.  


 


Please see Appendix A for the public interest considerations in relation to each of these 


exceptions. 


 


Conclusion 


I trust that this is now clear and this response addresses your concerns. If you are not content 


with the way we have handled your review, you may take this up in writing with the 


Information Commissioner, please see further details below.  


Please remember to quote reference number FOI-19-3090-R in any future communication 


relating to this request. 


Yours sincerely,  


 


 


Janine Mantle 


Corporate Affairs Director 


High Speed Two (HS2) Limited 


 


  







 


 


Your right to complain to HS2 Ltd and the Information Commissioner 


If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review, you have the right to apply 


directly to the Information Commissioner for a decision. The Information Commissioner can 


be contacted at:  


Information Commissioner’s Office 


Wycliffe House  


Water Lane 


Wilmslow 


Cheshire 


SK9 5AF 


 


 


 


 


 








